



TrustEd CSAT Alliance Domestic Policy

This policy has been consulted through the Trust Forum Group, which includes Support Staff and Teacher's representation for all schools within our Trust.

FREQUENCY OF REVIEW: Every two years
COMMITTEE: Personnel Committee
APPROVED: September 2022
AUTHOR: Shropshire HR
DATE OF NEXT REVIEW: Autumn 2024 unless there is material change

Adopted by the Board of Trust-Ed CSAT Alliance

Dated	
Dated	

CONTENTS

		Page
1.	Introduction	3
2.	Scope	3
3.	Aims and Objectives	3
4.	Definition	4
5.	Confidentiality	4
6.	Internal Support	4
7.	Dealing with alleged/convicted perpetrators	5
8.	Occupational Health	6
9.	Special Leave	6
10.	Support Officers	6
11.	Family Information Service	6
12.	Financial Arrangements	6
13.	Flexible Working	7
14.	Communication	7
15.	External Support	7
16.	Anti-discrimination	7
17.	Support and Guidance	7
18.	Associated Polices	7
19.	Monitoring and Review	7

Appendices

Α.	Roles and Responsibilities
В.	Specialist Support
C.	List of Trained Support Officers
D.	Guidance (FAQ's)
E.	Checklist for Employees

TrustEd CSAT Alliance Domestic Abuse Policy

1. Introduction

Domestic abuse is a widespread problem that is unacceptable and should not be ignored. The Trust will promote the understanding that every employee has the right to live and work free from violence and abuse in any form and shall strive to create a working environment that promotes this view.

The Trust is committed to caring for all its employee's welfare by striving to ensure a safe, healthy and productive working environment. This includes taking action to assist staff during difficult times and provide advice to employees to help eliminate or assist with domestic abuse issues that may be affecting them. Reference to 'Headteacher' throughout this procedure also includes Executive Headteacher/CEO or any Line Manager of the Trust.

2. Scope

This policy applies to all employees of the Trust.

The Trust is committed to ensuring that all Trust staff are treated fairly, consistently and in a non-discriminatory way in the application of this policy regardless of:

- Age
- Disability
- Gender Reassignment
- Marriage and civil partnership
- Pregnancy and maternity
- Race
- Religion or Belief
- Sex
- Sexual Orientation
- Contract type
- Trade union membership

3. Aims and Objectives

The purpose of this policy is to:

- support employees experiencing domestic abuse,
- enable employees experiencing domestic abuse to remain productive and at work,
- assist Headteachers/line managers to help staff who may be experiencing domestic abuse,
- assist colleagues of those experiencing domestic abuse,
- reinforce the Trust's social responsibility by demonstrating that they value and are prepared to support staff during difficult times.

A list of roles and responsibilities is shown at Appendix A.

4. Definition

The following definition is provided by the Women's aid Federation of England:

'Domestic violence is physical, sexual, psychological or financial violence that takes place within an intimate or family type relationship and that forms a pattern of coercive and controlling behaviour'.

It is acknowledged that while it is mainly women who experience domestic abuse, this policy applies equally to men who need advice or support.

The Government definition of domestic violence and abuse is:

'Any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive or threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or over who are or have been intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or sexuality. This can encompass, but is not limited to, the following types of abuse:

- Psychological
- Physical
- Sexual
- Financial
- Emotional

Controlling behaviour is:

- A range of acts designed to make a person subordinate and/or dependent by isolating them from sources of support,
- Exploiting their resources and capacities for personal gain, depriving them of the means needed for independence, resistance and escape and regulating their everyday behaviour.

Coercive behaviour is:

- An act or a pattern of acts of assault, threats, humiliation and intimidation or
- Other abuse that is used to harm, punish, or frighten their victim.'

The definition includes so called 'honour' based violence, female genital mutilation (FGM) and forced marriage, and is clear that victims are not confined to one gender or ethnic group.

Where this policy refers to partner or ex-partner this should be interpreted as including family members as detailed above.

In support of this, any employee who is experiencing or has experienced domestic abuse can raise the issue, in the knowledge that the matter will be treated effectively, sympathetically and confidentially.

5. Confidentiality

Any employee experiencing domestic abuse who has confided in their Headteacher/line manager has the right to confidentiality being maintained at all times. Involvement of other people will be kept to a minimum ('need to know' basis) to ensure confidentiality.

The number and nature of those people involved will be determined by the needs of the individual and the post/position held. In most circumstances an agreement will be reached with the employee over what information will be shared. However, the safety of the individual, other employees and the public is paramount and where this is deemed in the best interest of the school, information can be shared. In such cases the individual will be notified about the information that will be shared.

Arrangements should be considered for employees who may find it difficult to contact support services during normal working hours and thought given to those who do not have confidential access to facilities to make such telephone calls.

In addition, sensitivity and confidentiality should be respected in situations where a multiuse office is in operation.

In the case of a child or adult protection issue referral should be made to the Local Authority's Initial Contact Team on 0345 678 9021.

6. Internal Support

Security/safety arrangements

The security/safety of Trust employees will be prioritised at all times.

In situations when the Headteacher/line manager is made aware of an employee experiencing domestic abuse, suitable security arrangements will be put into place to ensure that the employee is as safe as possible within all the Trust sites.

Colleagues should be reminded that they should not answer enquiries from members of the public about colleagues working hours or arrangements.

The Trust may wish to take this opportunity to review the information publicised on each school website, such as employee photographs and contact details.

A priority car parking space could be arranged in close proximity to the Trust's buildings for employees who fear an attack at work. In addition, an escort to and from the employee's car could be arranged if required. This will be agreed on an individual basis and a risk assessment completed to determine the most appropriate person to carry out this voluntary duty.

In situations where the victim and the perpetrator both work for the Trust and there are reported instances of workplace bullying and harassment, the Trust's Bullying and Harassment Policy or the Disciplinary Procedure may be used.

7. Dealing with Alleged /Convicted Perpetrators

Dealing with alleged/convicted perpetrators. Any Trust Personnel who are aware of incidents of domestic abuse will need to make a judgement regarding sharing information on a 'need to know' basis with any staff likely to have contact with alleged or convicted perpetrators. In all cases, proportionality and relevance are fundamental to information sharing.

7.1 Parental Responsibility

The Trust should ensure that information stored on their system is updated regularly, and that there is total clarity in those records as to who has parental responsibility for a child. A perpetrator may have parental responsibility, but if they pose a risk to a child, The Trust has a

duty of care to protect the child. If the victim parent has not already done so, they should take legal advice and obtain an order, e.g., a Restraining Order, Non-Molestation Order, Non-Contact Order, which will clarify the position of The Trust. Head Teachers should ask to have sight of such orders in order to clarify their Risk Assessments. Parental responsibility cannot be removed, as such, but having parental responsibility does not automatically entitle a parent to collect a child, and if there has not been a prior arrangement made by the main carer, or if to release the child would pose any possible risk, The Trust should behave in a protective manner. Should the alleged/convicted perpetrator arrive to collect the child, Trust staff should say that they need to check this arrangement with the parent who brought the child into school. If this results in aggression, The Trust should ring 999.

7.2 Requests for Information

Allegations of domestic abuse may take time to resolve after disclosure. The alleged perpetrator may have parental responsibility and may continue to have dealings with a school, e.g., by requesting information about their child, or by attending school functions/information evenings.

Perpetrators of domestic abuse may be very adept at manipulating opinion; they may present a different image in public to that faced by those in the home environment. Alleged perpetrators may use conversations with professionals to divert attention away from their behaviour and its consequences, and to focus inappropriately on the behaviour of others. However congenially or aggressively the alleged perpetrator presents to Trust staff, on no account should they mention the disclosure to him/her or challenge him/her about it.

Situations may arise, if the perpetrator is no longer living in the family home, and there are no legal orders preventing contact, when they make requests e.g., to come into school to speak with the child. Whilst staff may be aware of parental responsibility, they should also remember that the child's welfare is paramount. A Headteacher has a right to refuse access to a parent when, in their professional judgment, such access would present difficulty to the child, other pupils and Trust staff. In the event of aggressive persistence by an alleged perpetrator, Trust staff should contact the police, using 999.

Trust staff should avoid being approached by perpetrators who wish to discuss their situation outside school; should such an approach occur staff should notify their Head Teacher/lone manger immediately and record all information.

8. Occupational Health

Headteachers/line managers can refer an employee to the Trust's Occupational Health provider with their consent when there is either a concern with the employee's health or when an employee's health is affecting their performance.

Employees may self-refer to the Trust's Occupational Health provider for a confidential consultation with an Occupational Health Advisor, for advice and support.

9. Special Leave

Special leave for appointments with support agencies or solicitors, to rearrange housing, to change childcare arrangements and for court appearances is available under the Trust's Special Leave Policy.

To make a request for Special Leave the employee is required to complete The Trusts 'Special Leave Request Form' and submit this to their Headteacher or their immediate line manager.

Agreement should be reached between the employee and the Headteacher/line manager for when time off is needed. Should the individual not wish to personally share their situation with their Headteacher/line manager, agreement for special leave could be reached between the employees support officer and Headteacher/line manager.

An agreed communication plan should be put in place detailing the best ways to keep in touch whilst the employee is away from work.

10. Support Officers

The Trust can access Shropshire Council's list of trained Support Officers. Contact details can be found at Appendix C. In addition to the support of the Headteacher/lone manger, these officers are available to help employees through difficult times and to assist in accessing any further support required.

11. Family Information Service

Trust employees can access Shropshire Council's family Information Service for a free, impartial, confidential advice on all aspects of family life. Employees can speak confidentially to one of the information professionals via the telephone helpline, e-mail, text service, or through a face-to-face appointment. A wide range of information is available to support families through any situation they may be facing, including domestic abuse. Contact details are shown at Appendix B.

12. Financial Arrangements

Where necessary the Headteacher/line manager or support officer can assist in liaising with the Trust's payroll provider to make any changes to how payment is made i.e., to avoid being paid into a joint account.

13. Flexible Working

Consideration should be given to requests to change hours of work and/or working patterns. Headteachers/line managers should recognise the need to avoid requiring employees to work late without reasonable notice (a late return home is one of the common triggers for perpetrators of domestic violence to abuse their victim).

Any changes to working arrangements will be reviewed on a frequent basis and regular agreed review dates put in place.

14. Communication

If necessary, arrangements should be made to change an employee's work e-mail address or telephone number in order to prevent unwanted communication from a perpetrator.

15. External Support

<u>Counselling Service – Network of Staff Supporters (NOSS)</u>

NOSS are an independent organisation who provides support to employees; the aim of NOSS is to help people stay healthy at work, particularly in stress related circumstances.

16. Anti-discrimination

The Trust will not discriminate against anyone who is being subjected to domestic abuse, in terms of their existing employment, training or career development.

17. Support and Guidance

Management guidance in the form of frequently asked questions (FAQ's) is available at Appendix D.

18. Associated Trust Policies

Bullying and Harassment Policy Disciplinary Policy Special Leave Policy Flexible Working Policy

19. Monitoring and Review

Trustees will monitor the outcomes and impact of this policy on an a bi-annual basis in conjunction with school representatives and will discuss revisions with their HR provider.

Roles and Responsibilities

Employee's responsibilities:

- to be aware of the Domestic Abuse Policy
- to encourage colleagues to seek help if they have problems
- to report any risks
- to self-refer if experiencing problems and commit to where possible maintaining the required level of attendance and performance at work
- to make use of the internal and external support services

Trust Board/ LGB Responsibilities:

- to implement this policy
- to raise awareness of this policy

Headteacher/line manager responsibilities:

- to raise awareness of this policy
- to ensure that they, and their staff, understand the policy and their responsibilities
- to monitor changes in behaviour, work performance and attendance and intervene early if there are signs of problems
- to act fairly, consistently and sensitively, with understanding compassion and a nonjudgmental approach
- to support the employee to achieve the necessary levels of attendance and work performance
- to refer employees for assistance where appropriate
- to ensure that confidentiality is respected as far as possible
- to understand that the employee may not wish to approach their headteacher/line manager and may wish to involve a third party i.e., a support officer or colleague
- to recognise that the employee may need some time to decide what to do and may try different options during the process
- to be aware of what support is available and to explore these options with the employee

Support Officer's role (see Appendix C):

- to decide if they are the appropriate person to provide support
- to provide support to employees
- to help employees identify options available to them under the policy
- to undertake initial training and refresher training
- to understand limits of own capabilities
- to offer the opportunity for confidential and informal discussion
- to positively promote the policy

Trust's HR provider's role:

- to ensure the policy applies to all Trust employees, is fair and consistent and includes processes to assist and support any employee
- to support Headteachers/line managers in implementing this policy
- to liaise with trade unions as appropriate
- to advise on the application of the policy and the relationship with other policies and procedures e.g., caring about sickness

Trust's Occupational Health provider's role:

- to provide advice and support to the headteacher/line manager
- to give strictly confidential advice to employees who seek help or are referred to them and will liaise with other agencies or their behalf.

(Occupational Health practitioners follow guidance from the Faculty of Occupational Medicine and the Nursing & Midwifery Council. There may be circumstances when in the interests of risk management, legal requirement or serious health risk, information may need to be shared e.g. child or adult protection).

Trade Union's role:

- to be familiar with this policy
- to encourage their members who are experiencing domestic abuse to seek help
- to advise their members of their rights and responsibilities under this policy
- to liaise with the Trust's HR provider as appropriate

Specialist Support

For a person who wants to get help from a specialist service for a domestic abuse problem it can feel difficult to take the next step, let alone choose the most suitable service and then find out how to get help.

Internal Support

Employees can self-refer to the Trust's Occupational Health provider or alternatively contact the Employees Counselling Service direct:

Occupational Health 01743 252833

NOSS (Employee Confidential Counselling Service) 01978 780479

The Family Information Service is a free, confidential and impartial service for all families, whatever their situation.

Direct helpline: 01743 254267

Text: FIS followed by a space followed by your message to 84433

E-mail: <u>ShropshireFIS@shropshire.gov.uk</u>

Website: www.shropshire.gov.uk/early-years-and-childcare

External Support

Shropshire Domestic Abuse Service. 0300 303 1191

www.shropsdas.org.uk

Victim Support (Shropshire)

Victim Support has a number of trained domestic violence support workers across Shropshire (victims do not have to be going through the judicial process to be referred). 01743 362812 (office hours)

National Domestic Violence Helpline 0808 2000 247

Domestic Violence Helpline for Shropshire (run by Women's Aid) 0800 783 1359 (24-hour support)

Women's Aid

Women's Aid in Shropshire provides support for domestic violence victims throughout the county. 01743 365032

Shropshire Police Domestic Abuse Officers

Police Officers are available who specialise in providing help and advice for domestic violence victims.

0300 333 3000 (ext. 5856)

Broken Rainbow

Provides support for lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender people experiencing domestic violence.

0300 999 5428

Respect

Help is available for abusers. Anyone worried about their behaviour towards their partner can visit Respect at www.respectphoneline.org or call their helpline on 0808 8024040 or alternatively, men specifically can call on 0808 8010327 or e-mail at www.mensadviceline.org

Unison

Provides emergency support, including financial aid and other assistance, for members through their charity 'Unison Welfare'.

Telephone: 0207 551 1620

E-mail: welfare@unison.co.uk
Website: www.unison.org.uk/welfare

List of Trained Support Officers

These Shropshire Council Support Officers are available for Trust employees to contact in addition to, or instead of, your Headteacher/line manager or the other internal supporters/advisers available to you.

All Support Officers have received appropriate skills training and are fully briefed on this policy.

They are available as an impartial, confidential supporter to you and can assist you in interpreting the Domestic Abuse Policy and its associated support options.

Name	Location	Contact Details
Helen Woodbridge	Shrewsbury	01743 254556
Lynne Hall	Shrewsbury	01743 250252
Julie Whiteley	Shrewsbury	01743 250160
Chris Roberts	Shrewsbury	01743 254843
Louise Evans	Shrewsbury	01743 252309
Nicky Parker	Shrewsbury	01743 359897
Carol Fox	Shrewsbury	01743 252814

Workplace Domestic Abuse Policy

Guidance for Trust Headteacher's and line managers

Frequently Asked Questions

Commonly asked questions surrounding Domestic Abuse and in the application of this policy:

1) What is Domestic Violence?

The following definition is provided by the Women's Aid Federation of England:

Domestic violence is defined as any violence, abuse or threatening behaviour between family members, current or former partners in an intimate relationship, whenever and wherever the violence occurs. It may include physical, sexual, emotional or financial abuse.

2) How many people does Domestic Abuse affect?

One in four women are likely to experience domestic abuse at some point in their life and one in ten are likely to be experiencing it at any one time.

Abuse often starts and escalates when a victim is pregnant and 90% of incidents are witnessed by children who live in a household where abuse occurs.

3) Who are the victims?

Domestic abuse can occur regardless of ethnicity, age, religion, class, sexuality, disability or lifestyle. It can also occur in a range of relationships including heterosexual, gay, and lesbian, bisexual and transgender relationships.

4) How can I tell if a colleague is experiencing Domestic Abuse?

There is no easy way to tell if someone is experiencing domestic violence, but things to look out for include:

- Repeated absence from work or social events.
- Fear of their partner.
- References to their partner's anger.
- Personality changes/becoming withdrawn.
- Repeated unexplained injuries.

5) What should I do if I think a member of my team is experiencing Domestic Abuse?

As the Headteacher/line manager you may identify concerns, or be notified by a third party, of potential domestic abuse issues.

It is your responsibility to discuss with the employee, in a sensitive way, any concerns that you may have. Remember to bear in mind that the issue may not be related to domestic abuse.

Explore with the individual your reasons for concern. This may be due to poor work performance, attendance issues, personality changes or lack of concentration.

If this is not a domestic abuse issue you may wish to discuss with your HR Business Partner/Officer, the options available. This could include accessing the Trust's Occupational Health provider, Employee Counselling Service or the Trust's Capability Procedure.

If this is a domestic abuse issue, please see question 6 below.

If you are not a line manager and you identify concerns that a colleague may be experiencing domestic abuse, this should be reported to your line manager.

6) What should I do if a member of my team tells me that they are experiencing domestic violence?

As a Headteacher/line manager it is your responsibility to have an informal discussion with the employee.

Discuss confidentially but be clear that in some cases there may be the need to involve other people. This could be due to legal, child or adult protection issues and in these instances, you must notify the individual of the referral.

During this discussion advise the employee of the internal and external support that is available to them (details can be found at Appendices B and C).

Explore with the individual if any special working arrangements are required. Consideration should be given to requests to change hours of work or work pattern (see Section 13 of the policy).

Recognise the need to avoid requiring the individual to work late (a late return home is one of the common triggers for perpetrators of domestic violence to abuse their victim).

Discuss with the individual if any special leave is needed (refer to the Special Leave Policy). This could include time off to rearrange childcare, to attend meetings with a solicitor or to arrange rehousing.

Consider if any changes are required in order to ensure the safety of the individual (refer to Section 6 of the policy). This could include changing telephone numbers/e-mail addresses or consulting with reception/security staff to arrange a priority car parking space close to the building. Colleagues should be reminded not to disclose details to members of the public regarding working hours or arrangements.

It is important to remain in regular contact with the individual and to agree a communication plan detailing the best way to keep in touch if the employee is not in work.

Some individuals may find it difficult to disclose issues of domestic abuse to their Headteacher/line manager. Should they inform a third party they should be encouraged to talk to their Headteacher/line manager to ensure that their circumstances are understood, and appropriate help and support provided. This may prevent formal action taking place. If the individual cannot be encouraged to inform their line manager, they should be advised of the other internal and external support that is available to them (details can be found at Appendices B & C).

7) What should I do if a member of my team reports they are a perpetrator of domestic violence?

You should have an informal discussion with the employee. During this discussion advise the individual of the internal and external support that is available to them (see Appendices B & C). Specific support for perpetrators of domestic abuse includes the organisation RESPECT who offers advice to help change behaviour patterns.

It is important to remain in contact with the individual on a frequent basis.

Contact the Trust's HR provider for further advice if the individual is convicted of a criminal offence.

8) I have agreed with the individual that the information they have shared with me will remain confidential. What should I do if I suspect that there is a child protection issue?

This must be referred to the Local Authorities' Initial Contact Team on telephone number 0345 678 9021.

Workplace Domestic Abuse Policy

Checklist for employees who may be suffering domestic abuse

	✓
Ensure you are familiar with the Domestic Abuse Policy and all of the support mechanisms available to you via the policy.	
Discuss with your Headteacher/ line manager if any changes to working arrangements are required. This could include a priority car parking space close to the building or an escort to and from your car.	
Liaise with the Trust's payroll provider if changes to your bank account details are required (to avoid being paid into a joint account).	
Talk to your Headteacher/line manager if you would benefit from someone else screening your calls.	
Talk to your Headteacher/ line manager about altering your working pattern if needed.	
If obtaining a restraining order, make sure that it includes your workplace.	
Save any threatening email or voicemail messages. You can use these to take legal action in the future, if you choose to. If you already have a restraining order the messages can serve as evidence in court that the order was violated.	
Provide a picture of the perpetrator to security/reception staff.	
Ensure that your emergency contact details are up to date. These can be updated by you via Myview or contacting the Trust's Payroll provider by email; Myview.payroll@shropshire.gov.uk	
Review the safety of your childcare arrangements. If you have a restraining order, it can usually be extended to your child's school or nursery.	